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I. INTRODUCTION

The following is an outline of the case as it has been submitted
by the parties to the European Commission of Human Rights .

__ The..applicant, ..Arthur Hilton,_is a citizen of the United Kingdom,

_ and of a tdest Indian family . He was born in 1945 in Hull wnerë ne stili

resides . He is a cook by occupation .

1 . The substance of the applicant's complaints

The applicant complained to the Commission that he was ill-treated
by prison staff during his detention in prison at Leeds and Liverpool from
June 1971 - January 1974 . He claimed that this alleged ill-treatment

amounted to inhuman and degrading treatment or punishment contrary t o
Art . 3 of the Convention . The applicant also complained of obstruction
by the Home Office on two occasions to allow him to instruct a solicitor
contrary to his right of access to courts in the determination of his civil
rights . This ancillary right is embodied in Art . G(1) (fair hearing) o f
the Convention as interpreted by the European Court of Human Rights in its judgmen

of 21 February 1975 in the Golder case . Finally he complained of unjustified
densorship of certain of his correspondence contrary to his right fo r

respect for correspondenca ensured by Art . 8 of the Convention .

He also invoked Art . 1(concerning the general undertakings cy
Signatory States) and Art . 5 (concerning deprivation of liberty) of the
Convention .

2 . Proceedines before the Co=ission

The present application was lodged with the Commission on 4 May
1972 a:id registered on 5 Ju :y 1972 .

On 5 March 197 6 , after a one year delay requested by the applicant,
the exchange by the parties of tl-_ir rritten observations on the admis-

sibility of the case and various deli3c :ations by the Commission on thc :

application's admissibility, the Corr-ission declared the application

admissible insofar as it concerned complaints under Arts . 3, 6 and 3 and

declared the remaindcr of the aprlication inadmissible as being imruaterial

to the allegations made .

On 23 April 197 6 , in the in,jestigations and establishment of the
facts of the case and on the instructions of the Commission, three
delegates of the Commission, Messrs Triantafyllides, Trechscl and Kiernan,
heard the applicant's personal evidence at the Council of Europe's Paris
Office . In view of the numerous allegations which the applicant had made
certain critical periods were selected by the delegates about whic h
Mr Hilton was invited to give his evidence during the hearing .

./ .
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At this hearing the applicant, who had been granted legal aid

in accordance with the Legal Aid Addendum to the Commission's Rules of

Procedure, was represented by Mr . A . Khan, Barrister-at-law and

Mr . M . Gold, Solicitor, Messrs Payne and Payne, }iull . The GovcrnTent werc

represented by Mrs E . Denza, their Agent, Foreign and Commonwealth Off' ;e,

Mr . P . Fifoot, Legal Counsellor, Foreign and Commonwealth Office ,

Miss S . Austin, Legal Adviser, Home Office, and Mr . D . Turnham, Home Gf :ice .

Following the report by the delegates and deliberations by the
Commission, four delegates of the Commission, Messrs Triantafyllides,
Trechsel, Kiernan and Klecker, heard the evidence of 17 witnesses,
proposed by both parties, in Leeds, England, fror_ 19 to 27. July 1976 .

On this occasion the applicant was again represented by 1-1r Khan

and Mr Gold . The Gove rnment were also representedby Mrs Denz a ,

Miss Austin an d Mr Turnham, with Mr S . Brown, Barrister-at-law, pree:entin~

the case and further assisted by Mr J .H . l:ilkinson, Assistant Solicitor,

Treasury Solicitors' Office, and Mr H .B . Jones an d Mr A.J . l;oods, also of

the Treasury Solicitors' Office .

On 8 July 1977 the Commission held an oral heariiig in Strasbourg

on the merits of the case at which the parties also submitted their con-

clusions on the evidence taken . Then the applicant was represente d

Mr Khan and Mr Gold and the Government by Mrs Denza, ;Sr Brown and
P.r Turnham and Mr T .H . Williams, Home Office Legal Adviser .

At this hearing the Commission decided to adjourn its deliberatio .is

concerning censorship of the applicant's letters (=he Art . 8 issue) unti_

conclusions can be drawn from seven test applications against the United
Kingdom presently before the Coimaission concerning the censorship of

prisoners' letters . The Cotmmission has therefore separated this ccmp'-ain'_

from the main body of the application and reserves its positior . on this

aspect of the case, on which it will report at a later date .

3 . The opinion of the Commission contained in the present Report is

therefore limited to the facts concerning, and issues raised under,

Arts . 3 and 6 of the Convention . It is drawn up in pursuance of Art . 31
cf the Conventian after deliberations and votes in plenary session, the

following members being present :

M. C .A. ydrgaard, Acting President (Rules 7 and 9

of the Rules of Procedure)
J .E .S . Fawcet t

G . Sperduti

E . Busuttil

L . Kellberg

B . Daver

J . Custers
C .H .F . Polak
J .A . Frowein

G . J5rundsson

G . Tenekides

S . Trechsel

B . Kiernan

N . Klecker .

./ .
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4. The text of the Report was adopted by the Commission on 6 March
1978 and is now transmitted to the Committee of Ministers in accordance

with Art . 31 (2) .

5 . A friendly settlement of the case has not been reached and the
purpose of the Commission in the present Report, as provided in Art . 31 (1)

is accordingly :

(1) to establish the facts, and

(2) to state an opinion as to whether the facts found disclose a
breach by the respondent Government of its obligations under

the Convention .

6 . A schedule setting out the history of proceedings before the

Commission and the Commission's decision on the admissibility of the

application are attached hereto as Appendices I and II . An account of

the Commission's unsuccessful attempt to reach a friendly settlement has
been produced as a separate document (Appendix III) .

7 . The full text of the pleadings of the parties together with the

documents lodged as exhibits are held in the archives of the Commission

and are available to the Committee of Pitinisters, if required .

/ .
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II. ESTABLISHMENT OF THE FACT S

t .

~ ~ ~ . . erac r

8 . There is very little agreement on fact between the parties hcr,ce

the°facts" outlined below consist mainly of the allegations made by the

applicant which were contested by the Government .

9, On 15 February 1971 the applicant was convicted of an offence of
malicious wounding and was sentenced to four years' imprisonment . i?e
commenced his sentence at Armley ,iail, Leeds .

10 . On 10 June 1971 the applicant injured a finger whilst at work .
From th ::n onwards the applicant wrote frequently to the Commission cont-
plaining about his treatment in prison .

11. The allegations of ill-treatment, harassment and victimisation
that follow, according to the applicant were further aggravated by racial
prejudice against him by the staff, as he is black, aad b% hestilit ;

from fellow prisoners following an unjustified rumour that he had been
convicted cf a sexual offence . As a result he clained to have been
obliged to spend most of his prison sentence in virtual solitary confinement,
renir.ved from association with other prisoners under Rule 43 of the Prison
Rules 1964 .

1=• He cor;tended that he was unable to remedy any of his coTplaints
beca ise o n each occasion after complaining to the prison Gove. rn _r tc no
avai l he was allegedly ralicicus 's : : charged with false disciplinar .: u"c ::ces .
AL,re o ver the Home Office were equally unwilling to ta'le his grievances

seriously and afford him a remedy and blocked his efforts to air his
complaints outside prison, for example by refusing hi n permission tc
instruct a solicitor .

13 . 10 June 197 1

13 .1m The applicant stated that, having hurt his finger lie was unahie t :.%
work on the prison manufacturing machines and was obliged ultinatel- tc d
the igr.ominious task of waxing thread at half tite wages he had orisi :,ali,
ear:,e -, . He complained unsuccessfully to the prison Governor about t~ .
_cdu_tion in h :s wages .

13 .2 The Government stated that the records show that the arrlice--
èi_' indeed injure his finger en 10 June 1471 for wSic'.i he receive' 'r:osp :tal
treatment . ;fadical reports werc- obtained following his comp :ain~ .-- 1,hic .
s_ate . . tiiat tnc: appîicant's fingcr healed, 1ea ;in 2 no e :idencr c•f = . :•: .:_ü _,: . ,%
The. ar.licant was made to wa :-: t~.read as he i.-as a}.pare; '
refusing without medical justificacion to do other kinds ef wcrk . T; C
appl :cant's petition of that month for pexnissior to seek legal advice was

reiected by the Home Office as they were sarisfied that the ap ;,lica°t iad
no further problems with his finger .

./ .
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14 . 12 August 1971
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14 .1 The applicant alleged that other prisoners were unjustifiably and
maliciously informed by certain of the prison staff that he had a previous
conviction for indecent assault . He had therefore been threatened by them
for which the prison afforded him no protection . He accordingly requested

the prison Governor to remove him from association with other prisoners
"in his own interests" in accordance with Rule 43 (1) of the Prison Rules
which states :

"Where it appears desirable for the maintenance of good order
or discipline or in his own interests, that a prisoner should
not associate with other prisoners, either generally or for
particular purposes, the Governor may arrange for the priscner's
removal from association accordingly . "

14 .2 In his request to the prison Gove rnor the applicant implied only

that as he had sided with a friend in an argument he was seeking
protection from his fellow inmates . This was a false implication made

on the advice of a prison officer to more easily convince the Governor .
His request was however refused by the Governor and the Home Office .

14 .3 The Government stated that there was no evidence of the applicant
being threatened because of a previous conviction of indecent assaul t
(a conviction which he did not have) or being otherwise threatened and
his request was refused as'the applicant was anyway suitably protecte d

from allegedly hostile prisoners as he was already removed from association
under Rule 43 being subject to punishment for disciplinary offences at that
time ("for the maintenance of good order or discipline") . When the punish-

ment expired he was placed under Rule 43 "in his own interests" at his
request, from 18 August 1.971 onwards .

.14 .4 The applicant spent most of his sentence removed from association
with other prisoners, usually at his own request but also fcr disciplinary

punishment . When serv ing the latter he was obliged to er,.pty his cell of

its bed during the day time . This constituted one of the a p plicant's

main complaints - alleged solitary confinement in stark conditions
throughout his sentence which he claims amounted to a breaci , of Art . 3 of

the Convention which prohibits inhuman or degrading treatment or punishment .

14 .5 The Government stressed that it was mostly the applicant's own
request to be removed from association and stated that such removal is not
solitary confinement but can take various forms depending on the needs of
the prisoner . While detained under Rule 43 for his own protection the
applicant apparently had the opportunity to take part in normal prison
activities but took little advantage of the facilities .

./ .
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15 . 23 August 197 1

15 .1 The applicant alleged that he was assaulted by a certain officer
Horum . He complained unsuccessfully of the assault to the Governor and
the Home Secretary and asked for a transfer to another prison so he could
end the alleged solitary confinement .

15 .2 The Gove rn or stated that there was no officer Horum at Leeds prison .

There was a senior officer Oran who had no knowledge of the alleged

incident . The applicant's request for a transfer was apparently refused
because at the time of complaining he had only been under Rule 43 "in his
ow n interests" for a few weeks and no adverse conclusions could be drawn
at that stage as to its effect .

16 . 27 Seotember 197 1

16 .1 The applicant was ordered on the afternoon of 27 September to

exercise with a prisoner who was awaiting trial for causing grievous

bodily harm with an iron bar to another prisoner . The applicant being

afraid of him, refused to exercise . He therefore received insufficient

exercise that day and accordingly complained to the Home Office . The

Home Office refused to take any action as the applicant had already taken
his morning exercise with this prisoner and due to staff shortages it was

unreasonable, in their opinion, for the applicant to demand a personal

e5co ri .

16 .2 The lack of exercise combined with the alleged solitary confinement
is also one of the applicant's principal complaints of an aggravate~
breach of Art . 3 of the Convention . Further incidents when he refused
exercise are recounted below . The Government's attitude wasthat his
refusals were unjustified and therefore, whatever the consequences, were
his own responsibility . In any event they wereof the opinion that the
lack of exercise in itself or in combination with the restrictions applied
to Rule 43 prisoners could not have amounted to a breach of Art . 3 .

1 7 . 7 October 19 7

J. .l The applicant refused to work as he claimed that the cold weather

that ùcy madc his finger ache . He was disciplined for refusing to wor}: .
?,t t :e hearing the applicant said nothing . He was accordingly found guilt .-
of disciplinary charges and punished . He complained to the Govenior and

Lric Hume Secretary about the allegedly unfair procedure, a complaint that

lie frequently made about many of the disciplinary hearings against hir. : .
In his petitior. to the Home Secretary he also complained of pressure being

put upon him,threats of physical violence and assaults, to makc him

withdraw his application with the Commission . For example, officer Swa?p

had allegedly punched him in the jaw that day for this reason and officer

Barker had called him a "Black Bastard" .

/•
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17 :2 The applicant's'petition was rejécted by the Home Office as being
wholly unfounded, officer Swaop having stoutly denied the allegations,
officer Barker no longer being at Leeds prison by the time of the alleged
incide:it, and medical reports having showed the applicant's finger to be
healed and therefore his refusal to work unjustified .

18 . 17 October 1971

18.1 The applicant cited as an apparently typical example of the alleged
victimisation, harassment and abuse to which he was subjected, a complaint
that on this day when the applicant was speaking to another prisoner through
their cell windows, dog handler Sullivan who was outside on patrol shouted
at him to get away from the window, allegedly calling him a "nigger", an
"ugly black bastard" and a "monkey" . The applicant said 'ne replied
abusively in retaliation . A similar exchange of abuse took place with
another dog handler, Mr Oldroyd, fifteen minutes later . That day he was
charged with using abusive and threatening language to these officers . He
was found guilty and punished the following day .

16.2 The applicant complained of such alleged provocation by prison staff
and their abuse of disciplinary measures to vent their malice towards him .

18.3 He also complained to the Race Relations Board about these matter s
but they informed him that they had no j urisdiction to examine his complaints .

18.4 Mr Sullivan dcnied provcking the applicant and maintained that the
applican t was abusive and Mr Oldroyd had no recollection of the incident
by June 1975 when the Government submitted their obse rvations on the
admissibility of the application .

19 . 18 October 197 1

19 .1 The applicant alleged that he was asked by the senicr medical

officer about his mental health and said that he could be given a bed in

Broadmoor Mental Hospital within ninety days . The applicant much resented
inferences, not only by Dr Orr, that he was mad .

19 . 2 According to the Government, the applicant was seen by Dr Orr
nearly every day, as part of the routine medical check of Rule 43 prisoners .
The medical staff did wonder whether the applicant was suffering from a
mental illness and conducted the appropriate investigations . In a report
around this time Dr Orr concluded that the applicant was "an hysterical
psychopatl" who manipulated his environment . "His imaginary grievances
have at times been so bizarre as to cast doubt as to the stace of his mind .
On investigation, however, there has never been any evidence to suggest
that he is suffering from any form of mental disorder ." As far as the
staff were concerned therefore the applicant was responsible for his
problems and no exception to the stringent conduct required by the Prison
Rules was possible .

/•
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20 . 21 October 197 1

The applicant petitioned the Home Office for a transfer to
another prison to enable him to come off Rule 43 detention . The request
was refused as it was felt nothing could be gained b•: a transfer .

21 . 22 October 197 1

21 .1 The applicant complained that his mother was turned away from the

prison on the false excuse that he had refused to sea her . The applicant

claimed that the alleged lie was told so that his mother would not see

that he had been beaten up .

21 .2 The Governnent maintained that as the applicant was serving a

disciplinary punishment at that time his mother's visit would bave been

"closed", i .c . tiie applicant would have been separated from his mother
by a transparenr shield . The applicant apparently refused to see his

mother under _uch conditions .

')o 23 Octc'yer 197 1

22 .1 Thu ap;:licant alleged whilst being escorted hv officer Stanhope

on his dail-: exc,rc'_sc, the officer ordered the a :F14_cant te remove his
hands from I;i . ; ?ocsets by saying "Get your gloves c `_i, monkey" . On
failing to ' _,• 2nd at the top of a flight of s*_airs the applicant

claimed tha, the cf'ficer dived at him, drag .,ing him doi.•n thc stairs and
kicking hLis a! :,les . They exchanged abusive languape wliereupon the
applicant w16 citarged with failing to obey a laeful order of an officer

and using threatening and abusive language .

22 .2 He was found guilty of these offences the fcllowing day when the

applicant also alleged that officer Swapp addressed insulting and threatenir .d
words to h .irz: . Ps a result of a petition of complaint concerning the twc-
officers anz' the.ir denials of the applicant's allegations, the applica^t was
warned about che possibie serious disciplinary conseourr.ces of making falsa
ar,d maliciocs sllegatic•ns about prison staff, whereu . .n the applicant
apparentl y to :,, his complaints no further at that staçe .

23 . 23 Dececc• 2 r 197 1

2_,] The i:p-_ : _ant : : o•r.plained that having heec told b-; the priest that
n t could a L [c : :_ .. carol service i ❑ tce even'_n :, he %. : : : un`aitl y refused
permission t~ Lctend by officer Martins .

23 .2 The G,aLru.Tént stated that the applicant was not alloaed to atten2
the carol se r:'ce as the prison chapel was una:)i_ to acco ::_ oaa[e all
prisoners who wished to go and, in refusing percissio .n., nccour.[ was taken
of the fact that Mr Hilton had attended a servic.• ir ti :e chaoél the
evening befor ~- .
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24 . 10 February 1972

5613/72

The applicant apparently asked the prison Governor what he

intended to do about his complaints against officer Stanhope (complaint

No 10 above) . He was advised to state his complaint in writing, which

he refused to do, and reminded of the disciplinary offence of making

false and malicious allegations against prison staff . On raising his

complaints with the Home Secretary, the Home Secretary made inquiries,

but concluded that the allegations were unfounded .

25 ; 22 March 197 2

The applicant stated that at this time he was serving a disciplinary
punishment and was subjected to a strip search by two officers . During
the search the applicant alleged that he was indecently assaulted and
insulted by one of the officers, officer Turner . This officer confiscated
a statement that the applicant had apparently written to the Commission .
The applicant complained of indecent assault to the Governor and the Home
Office who considered the allegations wholly unfounded . The applicant had
been subjected to a routine search, documents had been taken from him but
were later returned . The authorities, in the face of the applicant's
adament refusal to withdraw his complaint, charged him with making a false
and malicious allegation against officer Turner . He was found guilty and
punished for this offence by the Board of Visitors on 7 June 1972 . At the
hearing the applicant refused to speak as earlier he had submitted a
written statement in which he accused the proceedings of being a farce .

26 . 26 March 197 2

26 .1 The applicant attended a Sunday service in the prison c'.~apel . He

said something to his neighbour when he was allegedly told to "fucking

shut up" by officer Tomlinson . Later on, back in his cell, the applicant

clair..ed that officeu3To;nlinson and Brison entered and th_eate ïed hir.. with
violence, using fUul lauguage, because he had spoken in the c`,:spel .

26 .2 According to the Government the applicant was talking continuously

during the service and was spoken to by the escorting off.icers, to whom he
replied abusively . He was disciplined for doing so . Officer Tomlinson

had no recollection of using foul language after this incident, or at any

other time, to the applicant . Officer Brison was not on di ::y that day and,

being an inspector, would, anyway, no` have had reason to visit Mr Hilton's

cell .

27 . 10 June 197 2

27 .1 The applicant alleged that he was assaulted by officer Turner .

27 .2 He also alleged that the following day he was again assaulted by
officer Turner together with officer Atkinson . On this occasion he claimed
that they led him oii exercise into a little alley way behind the boiler
house where they set upon him with their chains of keys, breaxing a front
tooth . He claimed that they later fabricated an assault charge against him .

/ .
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27 .3 According to the Government records, the applicant complained of
an altercation with the officers on 10 June 1972 . He apparently refused
to return to his cell after being escorted by the two officers on exercise .
He apparently insulted officer Turner and grabbed his jacket . He had to
be forcibly returned to his cell . On 23 June 1972 he was discipline d
for assaulting the officer and using abusive language . He said nothing
at the disciplinary hearing . His petition to the Home Secretary dated 5 July

1972 complaining of the incident and requesting, inter alia, permission to
instruct a solicitor, was rejected, the latter request having been over-

looked by an administrative oversight .

27 .4 There is no medical evidence of injury to the applicant .

2E . 23 June 197 2

26,1 The prison doctor visited him

of a prisoner before he appears at a

mentioned in complaint No 15) . The

walked into his cell and then walked
stating to a prison officer that the

examination .

to make the routine medical check

disciplinary hearing (the hearing

applicant claimed that the doctor

out again imrediately, falsely

applicant had refused a medica i

26 .2 The Government stated that the records indicated that the

applicant refused to be examined .

2 8 .3 The applicant also complained that later, on 23 June, his request

for a photocopy of the charge sheet concerning officer Turner for tiie
purposcs of sending it to the Cor.ur.ission was refused, as it is not prison
practice to supply such photocopies . He stated tha, this practice is
wholly unjustifiable and :nreasonable .

2', 6 July 1 9 7 2

2? .1 Tne applicant alleged that officer Osborne attempted :o hit hi :,
with a broo- .

29 .2 The officer denied the allegation and said, m reovet, that he h ai
not wit n essed any such attempt by any other officer .

30, 12 Julq 197 2

1ne applicant complained of having to refuse to be escorted on
exercise with of :icer Atkinson in view of his above allegations
(compla :nt No 15) .

./ .
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31. 13 July 197 2

31 .1 The applicant again complained of having to refuse exercise
escorted by officer Atkinson . The applicant was subsequently warned
about making false and obscene allegations against the officer .

31.2 The applican t continued to refuse to exercise with officer
Atkinson, in particular on 18, 19, 20, 21, 22 and 23 July 1972 .

3 2, 23 July 197 2

32.1 In the evening the applicant complained that as a result of an
exchange of abuse between himself and officer Chapman, the night patrol
officer deliberately failed to switch the applicant's cell light off . The
applicant claims to have rung the emergency bell in his cell for an hour
in order to have the light switched off, but no one answered him . The
light was switched off much later .

32 .2 The Government stated that there is no record of this incident .

33 . 24 July 197 2

33 .1 The applicant alleged that he was called a "monkey" by officer
Chapman . The applicant complained of this and of his cell light being
left on the night before to the prison Governor, but to no avail .

33 .2 The Government stated that there is no record of the '_ncident or
of a complaint . Officer Chapman had no recollection of the period
concerned .

3.4 . 25 - 28 July 197 2

34 .1 During this period the applicant complained that he had to refuse

exercise with officers Chapman and Osborne as he suspected they intended

to lead him to the alleyway behind the boilerhouse where he had allegedly

been assaulted by officers Turner and Atkinson .

34 .2 He claimed to have asked the prison Governor for protection from
officer Osborne on 28 July 1972 .

34 .3 Again, the Government had no record of, and the officers no
recollection of, such complaints, apart from noting the applicant had
refused to exercise which, as explained above (Government attitude to
complaint No 4), was deemed unreasonable .

./ .
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35 . 9 Aug.ust 1972

35 .1 The applicant complained of his removal to the prison hospital
for thirteen days to undergo obse rv ations as to his mer.tal health . The

applica n t resented the suggestion that he was insane and further compl :ined c f

a lack of writing facilities for his letters to the Commission .

35 .2 The Government stated that the applicant was admitted to the hospital

because his apparently paranoid, false allegations of ill-treatment caused
concern for his mental health . Hovever once settled into the hospital ,
the applicant associated normally with staff and fellow patients and the
staff concluded he was not mentally ill .

35 .3 There is no record that the applicant's writing facilities in
respect of his application to the Commission were in any wav restricted
whilst in hospital or otherwise .

36 . 27 September 1972

36 .1 The applicant complained of victimisation and hounding to which he
was allegedl :: subjected by Assistant Governor Jennings .

36 .2 On t!i;t day in particular he claimed to have beer. unfairly discipline .'
fcr using abusive and threatening language to Mr Jennings .

36 .3 Mr Jernings denied victimising the applicant . He claimed to have
treated the applicant like any other prisoner, demanding his observancc of
the Prisor. Rcles . The applicant was apparentlq often abusive to him bur
Mr Jenniug.s only reported him for a disciplinar; of :ence when the abuse
was uttered in front of other staff or prisoners .

37, 20 n-tcher 197 2

37 .1 The arplicant complained of the manner in which he was transferred
to Liverpool prison that day - without notice .

37 .2 Th_ -".:;varnment justified the transfer as being in the applicant's
and sta :" s interests . It was hoped that a chauge of scene might help
him . It is trac,, however, that the applicant continued to be detained as

a Rule 43 priso^er at his own request, but this %~acz alloaed in order to
ga :n his c_-operation not because it was deemed nece .,stry .

3 7 .3 The app .licant further complainad of his transfer to Liverpool

because officers Turner and Barker had also been transferred there,
albeit earlier . He claimed that he was thcrefore scili subjected to

ill-treatment fro-. thec .

./ .
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37 .4 The Government stated that these officers had gone to Liverpool
prison on their own initiative to further their careers, i .e . for
promotions . They had little to no contact with the applicant and
certainly did not ill-treat him .

38 . 5 November 197 2

38. .1 The applicant alleged that he was taken out of the prison chapel,
where he had been attending a service, and beaten up by several prison
officers . He claimed to have been insulted and made to strip . Moreover
he said that his notes to the Commission were overturned and everything
taken out of his cell except his shoes . He immediately wrote a lette r
of complaint to the Commission, but whilst writing the applicant alleged
that a warder calling himself "Fred" came in and hit him eight times .

38 .2 The applicant stated that later on the prison doctor visited him
and apparently remarked to the escorting officer "no marks" . He asked
the applicant if he wanted a calming drug but the applicant refused
because he felt frightened .

KS .3 The applicant went on to allege that officer "Fred" ordered him
out of his cell to fetch his dinner . The applicant intended to put his
shoes on which he had been obliged to leave outside his cell but the
officer forbad him to do so . The applicant claimed therefore to have
been unable to fetch his meal and was obliged to lie on the floor as the
bed had also been removed from the cell .

38 .4 After about three hours he was allowed to put his things back in
the cell . He asked for the doctor as his kidneys were hurting . Eventually
the doctor visited him again and allegedly pretended to give him a diuretic
but in fact gave him a sleeping drug .

38 .5 The following day the applicant was charged with using threatening
and abusive language to officers whilst attending the service . At the
usual pre-disciplinary hearing medical check, the applicant complained of
aching, particularly of earache . The doctor found nothing wrong with him .
He was found guilty and disciplined for insulting the officers .

38 .6 The Government records showed that having been warned three times

about talking at the chapel service, the âpplicant finally replied abusively
and was escorted back to his cell where he underwent a routine personal

search . On being searched the applicant accused an officer cf assaul t
and called him a pig . At the disciplinary hearing he apologised for his
outburst which he said had been because he had felt frightened .

38•7 There are no records of the applicant's medical complaints .

38 .8 The applicant had not been allowed shoes in his cell as a routine
precaution for prisoners deemed to be aggressive . He was apparently allowed
slippers to wear in his cell .

/•
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39 . 7 November 197 2

39 .1 The applicant complained that in the morning he was unlocked by

three officers who became aggressive when he asked to see the Governor .

The senior medical officer's medical check apparently consisted of him

putting his head round the applicant's cell door and then withdrawing

saying to the escorting officer, "Yes . He's all right . "

39 .2 The Governor allegedly warned the applicant about making false

allegations to the Commission . The applicant claimed to have said,

"Will you stop threatening me?" To which the Governor is said to have

replied,"Sooner or later, Hilton, you will do things my way in here and

not your own . "

39,3 When back in his cell the applicant complained of yet another

strip search by an officer with a moustache . He considered this to be

harassment and victimisation .

39 .4 He raised his complaints with the Board of Visitors and asked for

protection on 8 Novenber . However, after making inquiries, they found

the applicant's complaints to be groundless .

.39 .5 The Government commented that routine strip searches together with

cell searches were necessarv to ensure that the prisoner did not hide

impleme .-: :s or other utensils to effect an escape .

40 . 25 November 197 2

40 .1 The applicant complained that his sister, who arrived at the prison

to see };im, was refused a visitor's pass . He alleged that this was

unfair as other peop :e arriving on the off-chaacc were usually allowed

visits .

4C .2 The Governmen_ cennented that there was no record of the aoplicant's

sister's appearance nr taa refusai of a visit . lne applicanr had tlir.

usual c cta of visiting orders to send to his family or friends . ihz ::

added tLat it is not a ;aay's necessarv to have a visiror' ., pas s to pa y a

visit, depending ori the staff available and the nureber of visits to the

prison on a particular day .

~1 . 10 January 197 3.

;I . : The applicant complained of being threatener,', abused and insulte d
about his colour and race by officers Hayward and Y.all, particularl N_, in
respect of his -,,~'_ication to the Commission .

41 .2 These officers denied the aprlicant's allegations and stated that

the applicant had no cause to bear them any griev_r.ce .

/•
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y2, 17 January 197 3

The applicant complained of ill-treatment by officer Edwards .

43, 18 February 197 3

The applicant stated that he was not promptly assisted when he
was sick .

44 . 19 February 197 3

The applicant requested protection from officer Edwards and
Deputy Governor Cooper .

45 . 20 February 197 3

The applicant alleged that patrolling officers called up to his
cell that he was a "wild animal" and that when fetching his tea he was
deliberately knocked by officer Wilcox .

46 . 24 February 197 3

The applicant complained that officer McCully shouted, without
reason ; at the applicant about "his fucking pens" and the "fucking huran
rights" .

47 . 0:1 or around 26 February 197 3

A note was put under the applicant's cell door which read "A"i

MORE OF YOUR FUCI:INC NONSENSE AND YOU'RE FOR IT . WE HAVE JUST Fv?D _ :.J[G}; .

SIGNED T1iE Wl?ITE TRASH ." The applicant concluded that this wo, f : ; .,

certain prison staff .

48 . 4 March 197 3

4S .1 .. . The applicant alleged that officer Edwards threw metal objectî at
him . Officer Edwards whom the applicant described as being very big,
weighing about 18 stone, is alleged to have pushed, bumped, insulte~ .
threatened (including a threat of death) and searched the applicant in
a degrading manner .

48 .2 On this day the applicant claimed that he had also been abused by
officer Walker and others .
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49 . Between 17 and 18 March 197 3

49 .2 The applicant complained of being "boxed-in" and bumped b y

officers Owen and Perkins in a corridor, of being denied the possibility

to "slop out" (empty his sanitary pot), to wash or go to the prison

canteen . He alleged that he had been insulted and abused by officers .

49 .3 All the officers cited in this and the preceding complaints

(complaints No 30 onwards) denied the applicant's allegations or that

they gave him cause to request any protection from them .

49 .4 Officer Edwards stated that being in charge of the punishment

landing he had had a lot of contact with the applicant whom he found

uncooperative and uncommunicative but not altogether impossible as he

had never had to report the applicant for a disciplinary offence .

(NB "Ir Edwards at the time of the Leeds hearing was of average size

and weight .) He said that he had treated Mr Hilton normally, like any

other prisoner .

49 .5 The Government commented that it was difficult to make Mr Hilton

take a bath or wash himself . Records show that he did have a bath and
"slop out" normally at this time .

50, 23 March 197 3

50 .1 The applicant complained he had been bumped into by officer Walker,
allegedly "a giant" compared with the applicant . he alleged that as a
result he had a swollen face .

50 .2 The officer denied the allegation .

51 . 25 March 1973

51 .1 The applicant complained that the prison doctor did nothing for his
swollen face .

51 .2 The G~vernment stated that there are no m:edical records of any
injury suffered by the applicant either on this occasion or in respect of
the precedin~- complaints (Nc 30 onwards) .

5^_, 5 6pril 197 3

52 . The appl'_cant complained of being unjustifiab : y charged and
punished for using abusive and threatening lar.,uap.e to o .`ficer Scot :
althou€h he claimed to have never spoken to hic : . i; :s punishment
included a bread and water diet .

./ .
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52 .2 The Government records disclosed that the applicant was alleged to
have shouted abuse at officer Edwards in the presence of officer Scott and
threatened to kill another officer . The applicant said nothing at the
disciplinary hearing . Because of the applicant's apparently continuous
threats to kill staff, it was decided in July 1973 only to unlock the
applicant in the presence of a senior officer and two others .

53 . 14 May 1973

53 .1 The applicant alleged that when he was "slopping out" he was
assaulted by officer Mount . Officer Hall who witnessed this allegedly
told officer Mount to "fucking nick him for assault" . Officer Walker
allegedly then came down the stairs and asked,"Fucking bear baiting, are
we?" The applicant claimed that he did not retaliate but went to write
a letter to the Commission to which officer Mount allegedly remarked,
"Do you think that bothers me? I don't give a fuck about that . That's
fuck all to me, you cunt! "

53 .2 The officers have denied all the applicant's allegations . All
they recalled was that the applicant was uncooperative and hardly ever
spoke to them .

54 . 18 May 197 3

54 .1 The applicant complained that he had only been allowed a bath and
a change of clean clothes three times in eight weeks, instead of once a
week . Also he stated that he had only been allowed access to the canteen
to spend his wages four times in eight weeks instead of once a week an d
on two of those occasions he was not allowed to spend his money . He had
apparently been told that the reason for such creatment was because he
did not speak to officers . But the applicant refused to do so because he
was apparently frightened of them .

54 .2 The Government commented again atout the difficulties of making the

applicant bath and wear clean clothes . At this stage they stated that he

refused to speak or cooperate witli the prison staff even when offered the

possibility of going to the canteen .

55 . ; 19 May 197 3

55 .1 The applicant complained of being pushed by officer Edwards into
his cell, making him spill the bowl of water he was carrying . He also
alléged that officer Edwards threatened him with his fist .

55 .2 The officer denied such allegations .

55 .3 At about this time the applicant had seven days lost remission
restored by the Home Secretary as a reward, and in an attempt to restore
his confidence in prison staff, for having warned Officer Cook o f
the danger of some falling rubbish .

/ .
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54 . 23 Hay 1973

54 .1 The applicant comnlained frequently of delaying tactics by

officers in accepting his letters to the Commission for posting and

supplying him with further pieces of foolscap to write more letters

of complaint to the Cornmission .

54 .2 The Government denied the applicant's allegations and cited

records of the innumerable occasions the applicant had been supplied

with paper for his application to the Commission as was born out hy

the numerous letters received by the Commission from the applicant .

55 . 24 Hay 197 3

The applicant alleged that he had been deliberated tripped up
and kicked by officer Edwards .

56 . 26 Mav 197 3

The applicant complained of being "kneed" by officer Wilcox .

57 . 6 June 197 3

The applicant complained of being insulted, pushed and dragged
along the floor by officer Hount .

50 . 8 June 197 3

The applicant alleged that he had been insulted, provoked and

threatened with a disciplinary charge by officer *1cCully, that he had

been bumped and pushed by officer Edwards and that he had been threatened

with a beating by officer Colgar and others who entered his cell .

5S .2 The officers cited in this and the preceding complaints (No 40 on-
wards) d=nied all the applica-at's allegations .

59 . Janu a rv 197 4

By the end of the applicant's detention in Liverpool prison he was
in a depressed state . He came to feel that he was like an animal, to suci

an extent that he would roll in his own excrement on the floor of his cell .
It is recorded that early in January he was found one day at four in thp~

morning "tu have made a small cut on his wrist with glass broken fror. his
mirror" and had rubbed "his oar. excreta onto his body, his face, his hair,
and into the wound" (Report of the Liverpool Prison Governor to th e
Regional Office) .

60. As a result of this state of affairs the applicant was transferred
to Flull Prison to serve the last six weeks of his sentence on 24 January
1974 . He was released from Hull Prison on 22 Februar~• 1974 .

/ .
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III . GENERAL OBSERVATIONS OF THE PARTIE S

A . Submissions of the Governmen t

61 . Most of the Government's submissions related to the facts of
the case and have been incorporated in the preceding "Establishment of
the facts" .

1 . Complaints of i11-treatment : Art . 3 of the Convention

(i) Allegations of threats, violence and abuse from
nrison officer s

62 . The Government submitted that there was no evidence of any ill-
treatment of the applicant and therefore no evidence of a possible breach
of Art . 3 of the Convention . In their opinion the applicant's allegations
can only be considered to be a "total misrepresentation" or gross
exaggeration of what actually happened .

(ii) Placement under Rule 4 3

63 . The Government maintained that no violation of Art . 3 was disclosed
from the detention of the applicant under this rule in view of the fact
that it was at his own request for the most part and despite frequent
suggestions from the prison staff that he resume normal prison life . The
Government acknowledged the Commission's views in the Greek case that
action which drives someone to act against his will might constitute
degrading treatment, but it was submitted that the applicant's fears were
wholly without justification . The authorities, although of this view,
permitted the applicant to be placed under Rule 43 in an effort to
encourage him, by such co-operation on their part, to develop a more stable
attitude . The Government also contended that there was no breach o f
Art . 3 in the conditions of detention, as such, under Rule 43 .

(iii) Adjudication and punishment on charges under
Prisan Rules

64 . The Government submitted that the process of ad ;udication of

disciplinary charges under the Prison Rules is not a matter that falls

within the scope of Art . 3 . Nevertheless, they pointed out that the

applicant's allegations regarding fabricated disciplinary charges and

evidence were denied ; the applicant was informed of the disciplinary

charges against him beforehand and given a full opportunity to put his

case . They concluded therefore that his complaints in this respect were

wholly unfounded and did not disclose any appearance of a violation of

Art . 3 of the Convention .

/ .
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(iv) Exercise facilities

65 . The Government stated that the applicant had every opportunity

to take proper exercise, that he refused those opportunities for fears

which were wholly groundless . They contended that the applicant had no

cause to fear various prison officers and that it was impossible to arraî,_e

staffing to suit a particular prisoner . The applicant's refusals to ta ;;e

exercise, the Government considered, were, therefore, unreasonable and any

disagreeable consequences were his own responsibility .

66 . The Government acknowledged that the applicant reached a degraded

state by the end of his imprisonment at Liverpool prison . However they

submitted that this was of his own doing . It was cerrairly not the

intention of the prison authorities to reduce him to such a state .

67 . They contended that everything possible within the prison system

had been done for the applicant and queried the alternatives which would

have been possible :- the applicant could not have gone to a special ment-~l

hospital as tne prison medical staff could not certify that the applicanr
was insane ; he was not a suitable prisoner for the one special Rule 4 3

prison available at that time partly because he was not within the geograrhi.ca_

catchment area of that prison and partly because of his subversive, wholly

uncooperative attitude and his facility to alienate all persons around hic :,

both staff and fellow prisoners, and to be a gene-aliy disruptive influenc,_ .
Moreover it was not possible to create a"psychoiogical soft cell" for th

ca?plicant within Leeds or Liverpool prisons by devising a unique mettiod cf

supervising his imprisonment .

68 . On the c:•hole therefore the applicant was obliged to conform to thc

normal prison requirements . As it was, the Government submitted, the
applicant was treated indulgently in the circumstances . The number of
occasions when his outbursts were overlooked or his wild allegations were

ignored far exceeded those occasions wlien he was disciplined . The Government
also stated that various attempts were made to ascis' the applicant, e .ç .
by the medical staff, the prison chaplain and welfare services but the
applicant re ;ected all such assistance .

69 . The Gove rnment concluded therefore that t n ere h ad been no breach o'
Art . 3 o[ tn - Convention i n the treatment of the apalicant .

2 The refus

instru _t
al of the Home Secre
a solicitor : Art . 6

to allo : th2 aoplicant to
of the Co:wL-Itior,

70 . The applicant made two requests to instruct a solicitor concernia.s
the injury to his finger in June 1971 and Julv 1972 .

71 . On the first occasion the refusal was given before the Com:nission's
Reports in tha Knechtl and Golder cases and the co : .sequent policy chantes
by the Home Office allowing access to solicitors in respect of civil pro-
ceedings . The second occasion was a regrettaole ov~rsig5r in view of tne
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numerous petitions submitted by the applicant at that time . However the
Government submitted that as the applicant sustained no permanent dis-
ability to his finger, he was not time-barred from bringing civil action
on his release and the Prison Rules have been suitably amended, no purpose
would be served in pursuing the matter further .

B . Submissions of the applican t

1 . Complaints of ill-treatment : Art . 3 of the Convention

72 . The applicant maintained all his allegations of ill-treatment
which in his submission amounted to a breach of Art . 3 of the Convention .

The alleged assaults and abuse from prison staff, he claimed, constituted
mental and physical torture . Furthermore he submitted that his detention
removed from association with other prisoners under Rule 43 of the Prison
Rules was not for his own protection but was "undue, unjust and unjustified
punishment", inordinately long, consisting of 23 hours a day solitary con-
finement, involving loss of privileges and causing him severe mental strain
and degradation .

73 . Finally he contended that the cumulative effect of solitary con-
finement, alleged ill-treatment deliberately inflicted, the refusal by
all concerned to investigate, or cause to be investigated, the complaints
of brutality he was making against prison officers, the incessant com-
plaints that were made against him and subsequent disciplinary proceedings
which allegedly ignored the rules of natural justice and the continuous
loss of privileges, resulted in his total degradation and constituted a
breach of Art . 3 of the Convention .

2 . The refusal of the Home Secretary to allow the applica
to instruct a solicitor : Art . 6 (1) of the Conventio n

74 . The applicant submitted that the refusals of access to a solicitor,
admitted by the Government, effectively denied him access to the court s
in respect of proposed civil proceedings and therefore constituted a clear

violâtion of Art . 6 (1) oF the Convention as interpreted by the European

Court of Human Rights in its Judgment of 21 February 1975 in the Colder

case .

. ( .
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IV. POINTS AT ISSUE

75 . The following issues arise under the Convention :

1) Whether the treatment of the applicant whilst at Leeds and
Liverpool Prisons, in particular instances, amounted to
inhuman or degrading treatment or punishment contrary to
Art . 3 of the Convention ;

2) Whether the treatment of the applicant whilst at Leeds and

Liverpool Prisons, in general, amounted to inhuman or degrading

treatment or punishment contrary to Art . 3 of the Convention ;

3) Whether the authorities' refusals to allow the applicant to
instruct a solicitor concerning prospective civil proceedings

amounted to breaches of Art . 6 (1) of the Convention .

./ .
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V . OPINIO`7 OF THE CONL",ISSION

A . Art . 3 of the Convention

1 . Gereral legal issues

76 . The central issue in this application is whether the treatment
of the applicant a•hilst detained in Leeds and Liverpool Prisons between
June 197 1 an_ January 197/+, either in particular instances or in general,
amounted to a breach of Art . 3 of the Convention .

77 . P.rt . 3 provides that :

"`Ic. o: e shall ba :subjacte :3 to torture or to inhuman or
èegrading tre : -r,• : .c or punishment . "

78 . As to the definition of these terms, the parties have referred
the Com :issio :r to its j ::risprudence in the inter-State cases, in par-
ticular the Greelc Case ~é,pplications o 3321/67, Denmark v . Greece ;
No 3322/67, ::oi-.ray v . Greece ; :~o 3323/57, Sweden v . Greece ; No 3344/67,
the Netherlands v . Greece) .

79 . In the Greek case the Commission was of the opinion that :

"The notio:-, of inhu-.a:r treat :n_nt covers at least such treat-
rent as èe'ib=.ra =_ . causes severe suffering, mental or

physica~, r:l:ic`., i:i the parcic~:lar situation is unjustifiable .

Ile word 'tc :•turc' is often used to describe inhuman treatment,
which has a pu-pose, such as the obtaining of information or

cor fes ::aor.s, c : tl:e inflicticn of punishment, and it i s

gc. ntrs11•: an form of inhuman treatment . Treatment

or pun ;shr__ :t of a : : ::dividual may be said to be degrading if

it grossly humiliates :rim beforc othexs or drives him to act

against his will or conscience ." (Tearbook 12, The Greek Case,

p . 186)

80 . In the case of 1vi:a r y . the Ur•.ited Kingdom (Application No 5856/72)

however, the Ce-uission peinteè cut that reference to the inter-State cases

for a definition cf degre.J±ng treatment is not necessarily relevant to an

application of the present kind as the inter-State cases have arisen out

of emergency situations and involved allegations of torture, or treatment

akin to torture .

./ .
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81 . Thus not all treatment in breach of Art . ~ need be aua:ifie,' by

such adjectives as atrocious or gross . Suffice it to say, _ r .eaffir"1ed

by the European Court of Human Rights in the Case o .` Irelan : gainst the

L'nited Kingdom that the "ill-treatment must attain a certain ivel of

severity if it is to fall within the scope of Art . 3 . Tte a_ . :ssment

of this minimum is, in the nature of things, relative ; ir depe?cs on all

the circumstances of the case, such as the duraticn of tlie treatmant, its

physical or mental effects and, in some cases, the se :;, age aiid state of

health of the victim, etc ." (para . 162 of Ju6gmc . :t oi ld Janu~.rv 1978)

82 . i.rnether the treatment of the appli ...ant amocntr_d to a breach cf

Art . 3 of the Convention depends upon a detaileJ ass_ss7.-n ; of the facts

as regards both specific and general allegati . : .

2 . The appli cant's specific allegations of :.11-treat :nen t

83 . It has proved difficult to establish the facts of any of the

applicant's allegations of assault . victimisation, harassrrent, racism

or abuse from prison staff at Leed : and Liverp :)ol Prisc .s bet .:een June

1971 and January 1974 . All such allegations } .ave bee :i denied .

8 1 . The applicant, at the Paris hearing, appeai-ed te sincerely be'_ieve

his account of tne case and at that stage there was no indication that it

was untrue .

85 . However there is no objective evidence in support of any of the

allegations made by him ; for example, there is no medical evidence of

injury sustained n ; assault .

86 . As a result of the delegates' investigation of the facts of the

case, it is possible on occasions to further doubt the credibility of

the applicant's allegations, e .f . . officer Edwards, abou± whom the

applicant complained frequently, was described by tie applicant as being

"an 18 stone giant" (complaint iJo 36) but at the Lee .-'.=_ hearing was seen

to be of a moderate height and size ; tlie "alleywa-•" behind the boiler

house where officers Turner and Atkinson allegedly took the applicant on

exercise and asenulte,'. him is not a small narrow pas .=.age hidden from view,

as was implied by rhr applicarr, but a fairly wi&l area in good view of

cne of the prison b'_ocks and p ::s.sing prisoners on exercis= and is use d

. . s a sma_] e :•:ercise yard for p-:isoners removed fror.: association with other

prisoners who are apparently exercised on their ov:, or ir. pairs escorted

by two officers w!)-:n the other exercise yards are ir. use .

87 . Neverthe]-_ss, the Commiasion has to conc.icde cr. the evidence that

in respect of ti,= applicant's allegations of speciiic incidents of ill-

treatment no b_ :ach of Art . 3 of the Convention is n :sclosaz .
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3 . The general treatmant of the applican t

88. The question remains whether the general treatment of th e
applicant,by act or omission, in its cumulative effect, amounted to
such a breach .

89 . It is clear that the applicant was an extremely difficult
prisoner to handle . He has spent many years of his life in custodial
institutions since he was a juvenile . Previous periods of imprison-
ment have caused him similar problems, although not to the extent
alleged in the present application . His difficulties at Leeds and
Liverpool prisons may partly have stemmed from the fact that he was
serving his longest period of imprisonment .

90. When he entered Leeds prison in 1971 he was an apparently
ordinary prisoner, even though he was disciplined a few times during
those first months . His work record in the prison tube shop, for
example, was satisfactory . But in June 1971 he injured his finger
at work from which time it appears that his real problems began .

91 . A source of frustration and bitte rness for him was the pro-
hibition by the prison authorities of access to outside advice, such
as from a solicitor, concerning his grievances . Complaints had to
be aired through the internal prison channels in which the applicant
had no confidence .

92 . He placed no reliance on the prison staff and feared hostility
from fellow prisoners . He was thus in the unique position of feeling
alienated from both staff and prisoners and avoided contact with any
of them .

93. The staff attitude cowards him was cautious ; he was considered
to be a "trouble-maker" . Thus his abuse and misdemeanours were met
with strict disciplinary sanctions, particularly as he was deemed
mentally responsible for his acts . The applicant's life accordingly
alternated between being removed from association with other prisoners
at his own request for fear of hostilities from them and being removed
from association as a punishment .

94 . Cut off in this way from normal prison life, partly at his own

request, the applicant suffered and was unable to cope . The applicant

over-reacted to the prison disciplinary system . The prison staff

unfortunately, in their turn, reacted by applying further disciplinary

measures, with perhaps unnecessary rigour .

95 . By the end of his imprisonment in Liverpool prison in January
1974 the applicant was in a deplorable state . As described by the
Government :

./ .
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"If a man covers himself in excreta, well then arguably

that is properly to be regarded as a degraded state ."

(Verbatim Record, Strasbourg hearing, July 1977, page 31 . )

96 . The Cocmission has therefore examined whether the applicant

could he said tc: have been treated generally in a dcgrading r .r.nner .

It does not consider that a question of torture or inhuman treatment

arises from the facts of the case .

97 . As said above, the Commission does not find proved any of the

specific allerations of ill-treatment put forward by the applicant .

There is no evidence that the applicant was deliberately treated in

a degrading manner . But such factors as the conditions of over-

crowding and under :.'taffing disclosed by this application and the

rigorous, impersonal application of disciplinary measures, on

occasions to the point of absurdity (for example, the applicant's

punishment for putting his hands in his pockets - complaint No 10)

all had their depressing and discouraging effect upor. the applicant .

95 . Equally, the applicant's own personality was a contributing

factor . Even though he was not deemed certifiably mentailv ill, he

was a stressful personality unable to accept the realities of imprison-

cE r :t . Ne r:~rreacted and was over-sensitive to all disagreements

associateL'~:ltü his imprisonment . The applicant was particularlv

=_-ns'_tiva aboot references to the colour of his skin, but the

l)oVernf.rt:nt _n'orTed the Covm :ission that no account is taken of a

prisoner's race, thus perhaps ignoring very real probleras which may

srise in certain circumstances . It is evident, nevertheless, that the

a?plican[ constituted a provocation for the staff and presented them

with a parti,-.:ilarl ; difficult situation - whether te ignore him, humour

}-, :rr., oblige hir.. to conform or try to help him .

99 . The Co-.riission has considered whether the authorities' failure

to cope with such an odd personality amounted to a breach of Art . 3 of

the Conventio : : .

1 0 0 . In this respect the Comnission has noted the various positive

eiforts, alr.e'_ unsuccessful, whi.ch the prison authorities made to

! .cip tne a rl'ca ::t : his trazisfer to Liverpool prison and, at the end

of his seote-r~_, to Hull prison, the more or less continued obse rv ation
c.aè b'. tt c*~risor: medical staff of the applicant's r..er.ta_ health to
sec whether ~.~ ~hculd be transferred to a special mental hospital such

as Eroadno^r, the accession to the applicant's request to be removed

_ . .- . . . a= :~~_ ._ .r . Mith other pris_mers ir: r.rder to re-estac]'-sh his
Lor. :`ida:nL, e staff, the restorario : . of lost rerissio :~ for sociable

betiaviour, in aa effort to re-establish this canfid'cnce (complaint

, ;J) a-io t' ._ i• ;sits by the prison chanlain, otl-er religious functionaries

a.:'_ welfare /

.
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101 . In the opinion of the prison authorities the applicant could
not have been put in a special mental hospital and be was not suitable
for the one special prison existing at that time for persons who would
normally be removed from association with other prisoners unde r
Rule 43 of the Prison Rules because of hostility they would face for
their previous convictions, usually for sexual offences . The applicant
was unsuitable for such a prison as he had no such record and would not
have integrated with such prisoners as he was an abrasive character .
ttoreover, there were, and still are, regrettable limitations on normal
prisons, because of understaffing and overcrowding, which make it
difficult to give special attention to an individual prisoner's problems .

102 . The Commission concludes therefore that the general treatment of the
applicant, althougii extremely unsatisfactory in all the circumstances of

the case, did not anount to degrading treatment contrary to Art . 3 of the
Convention .

B . Art . 6 (1) of the Conventio n

103 . The applicant has complained of the refusal by the Home Secretary
of his petition in June 1971 for permission to seek legal advice from a
solicitor with a view to instituting civil proceedings, following the
injury to his finger . He also complained of an oversight by the Home
Office in their failure to reply to his petition of 5 July 1972 requesting
permission to instruct a solicitor about civil proceedings, following an
alleged assault by prison officers . The applicant submitted that these
prohibitions constituted a denial of access to the civil courts, a right
ensured by Art . 6 (1) of the Convention as interpreted by the European
Court of Human Rights in its Judgment of 21 February 1975 in the Golder
case .

104 . Art . 6 (1) of the Convention provides that "In the determination
of his civil rights and obligations . . . . everyone is entitled to a fair
and public hearing within a reasonable time by an independent and
it.?artial tribunal established by law" .

105 . In its Judgment in the Golder case the Court considered that this

right would be of no value if there was no possibility of institutin5

such proceedings . Hence it held that "Art . 6 (1) secures to evervc . .̂e

the right to have any claim relating to his civil rights and obligations
brought before a court or tribunal . In this way the Article embodies

'the right to a court', of which the right of access, that is the risht

to institute proceedings before courts in civil matters, constitutes one
aspect only . To this are added the guarantees laid down by Art . 6 (1 )
as regards the organisation and composition of the court, and the centent
of the proceedings . In sum, the whole makes up the right to a fair
hearing" . (Eur . Court H .R., Golder Case, Judg.ment of 21 February 1975,
Series A, Vol . 18, p . 18, para . 36 .)'

/•
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106 . In the present case the Commission finds that it was the

applicant's intention to institute civil proceedings against prison

staff and the prison authorities for the i njury to his finger and

the alleged assault . The applicant was respectivel y refused

permission to do so in June 1971 and prevented from doing so in

July 1972 by the Home Secretary .

107 . As in the Golder case, therefore, the Home Secretary "actually

impeded the lau nching of the contemplated action . Without formally

denying . . . . /the applicant/ his right to institute proceedings before

a Court, the Home Secretary did in fact prevent him from commencing an

action at that time . . . . Hindrance in fact can contravene the Convention

just like a legal impediment" (Eur. Court H .R ., Golder Case, Judgment

of 21 Februar), 1975, Series A, Vol . 18, p . 13, para . 2B) . In his

denials of authorisation to institute proceedings, the Home Secretary

fai_ed to respect Mr Hilton's right to go before a civil court as

guaranteed by Art . 6 (1) of the Convention .

CIJ ::CLUSIO N

i09 . 1 .The Cormcission is of the opinion, by a vote of ten to four
that rio brear.h of Art . 3 is disclosed by the facts of the case .

] r~~• ' .The Com^ ,ission is unanimously of the opinion that the facts
of the comp'_aint conce rning denial of access to the courts disclose
a breach of Art . 6 (1) of the Convention .

Secretary to the Commission Acting President of the Commissio n

(H .C . F:RUGER) ( C .A . NQRGAARD)
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enr cr .

Dissenting Opinion of
1c loir.
Messrs . Fawcett . Tenekides . Trechsel & Klecker

We agree with the opinion of the Commission that as regards the

applicant's allegations of specific incidents of ill-treatment no breach

of Art . 3 of the Convention is disclosed .

However, in disagreement with the majority opinion of the Commission,

we consider that the general treatment of the applicant in its cumulative

effect, constituted degrading treatment contrary to Art . 3 of the Convention .

We are not denying that the applicant became an uncooperative,

difficult prisoner . It is clear that he had genuine problems but als o

that he was not essentially bad or evil or out to cause trouble . He was

emotionally and psychologically disturbed and unable to cope with his

situation . It appears that he over-reacted to many of the incidents

which occurred, which may account for his vociferous and somewhat

exaggerated allegations to the Commission .

We find it inadmissible that a prison system should reduce a

prisoner to an "animal-like" state, to use the phrase frequently mentioned

in this case, whatever his difficulties .

Dr Orr's assessment of the applicant, that he was not suffering

from a mental disorder, seems to be inconsistent with the description of

the applicant by Dr Orr himself as an "hysterical psychopath" . And we

find it surprising that no thorough study of the applicant's mental health

was'conducted by a specialised psychiatrist in addition to the periodical

general observations made by the prison medical staff .

./ .
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In our view, however, this question of fact is not decisive i n

the case . Whether or not one assimes that the applicant was mentally

disturbed, the extremely repressive :application of disciplinary measures

with its destructive effect on the applicant amounted to degrading

treatment contrary to Art . 3 of the Conveniton .

The inflexibility of the prison staff in their rigorous insistence

that the applicant conform to the Prison Rules, the isolation of the

applicant under Rule 43 from other prisoners and from contact with outside

help, such as from lawyers, the lack of facilities in the prisons con-

cerned, the understaffing and overcrowding, all took their toll on the

applicant .

Even though particular individuals in the prison authority may not

have intended the applicant's decline, nevertheless it was the result of

his treatment that he was reduced to a state of self-degradation for which

no serious solution was attempted or found .

We conclude therefore that the general treatment of the applican t

was degrading contrary to Art . 3 of the Convention .
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Item

Date of Introduction of applicatio n

Date of its registration

Applicant's request to withhold
examination of the admissibility of
his application pending his further
submission s

Commission's deliberations on the
admissibility of the case and decision
to notify the United Kingdom
Government of the application and to
invite their observations on its
admissibility

Date of Government's observations
on admissibilit y

Date of applicant's observations
on admissibility in reply

Commission's deliberations on the
admissibility of this case and
decision to declare it admissible
insofar as it concerned allegations
of ill-treatment (Art . 3) ,
of access to a solicitor (Art . 6(1))
and censorship of correspondence
(Art . 8) .

Date Note

4 May 197 2

5 July 197 2

12 January 1973

Mt4. Sperduti
Fawcet t

18 December
1974 Ermacora

.Triantafyllides

Welter

Busuttil

-Kellberg

Daver

Mangan

Custers

N~rgaard

Polak

Frowein

J6rundsson

Dupuy

17 June 1975

22 September 197 5

5 March 1976 MM . 116rgaard

Fawcett

Busuttil

Ke l lb er g

Custers

Polak

Frowein

J6rundsson

Dupuy

Tenekides

Trechsel

Piernan

Klecker
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Item Date ::cte

Dele p,atcs :

Oral hearing by the delegates of the 23 April 1976 141 . M . Trinr.t: f~llic:e :

Cocnzission of the applicant in person S . Trechsel
at the Council of Europe's Paris B . Kierr.en
Office

For the appli cant :

P71 . A . I:h, r

M . Gc_ d

For the Governrt :en t

1-1rs . E . ~ : . D_nz_
Mr . P . Fifooc
Miss S . Austin
Ptr . D . 1urn!ia n

Oral hearing by the delegates of 19-21
July 1976 Delegates :

the Cc:.nission of 17 witnesse s
proposed by both parties, held 2^! . 1' . Triantafqllii-
in Leeds (U .K.) S. Trrci~sa l

B . Kiernan

. . l: :ect:er

For the an,)licant :

PN . A . Khan
11 . Goi d

For the Covernrent :

lirs . E . ;1 . Denza
P?r . S . Bra :n
P!iss S . P.uscir.
PC4 . D . Turnhan

J . A . S:il}:inson
U . B . Jone s
A . J . F7oods

C= : ::ission's deliberations 30 September 1976 T81 . Wrgaard
cl:e merits of the case Fawcet c

Sperduti

Ermacora

Triantsf~l]ide

sBL'sL`tE: i

Keï]ne .-j;

DaVe L

oosali

Cu,t . . . a
Polai .

Fro .,,, _a

JSrunessc::
Du^u ~

Tenef.ides
T reC h Se _

F_or-:an
}:lecl:er
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Item

Commission's deliberations on the
merits of the case and decision to
invite the parties to an oral
hearing in Strasbourg to present
their conclusions on the merits of
the application

Dat e

9 March 197 7

Oral hearing of the parties' conclusions 8 July 1977
on the merits of the case and
deliberations of the Commissio n

Commission's deliberations
on the merits of the case

8 October 1977

5613/72

tiot e

101 . Sperduti

Ndrgaard

Busuttil

Kellberg

Daver

Opsahl

Custers

Polak

Frowein

JSrundsson

Tenekides

Trechsel

Kiernan

Klecke r

MH . I7drgaard

Fawcett

Sperduti

Ermacora

Triantafyllides

Busuttil

Ke l lb erg

Daver

Opsahl

Custers

Frowein

Dupuy

Tenekides

Trechsel

Kiernan

Klecke r

For the applicant :

I'AI• A . Knar.
M . Gol d

For the Government :

Mrs . E . Denza

MM . Arown

llilliams
Turnham

MM . P+6rgaard

Fawcett

Ermacora

Triantafyllide s

Busutt.il

Kellberg

Daver

Opsahl

Pclak

Jiirundsson

Dupuy

Tenekides

Kiernan

Klecker
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Commission's deliberations
cn the merits of the cas e

Cocamission's deliberation s
anri final note on the merits of

the case.

- 34 -

Dat e

6 December 197 7

6 March 1978

t]ot e

MI9 . Nbrçaard
Fa cett
Sperduti
Dave r
Opsahl
Custers
Polak
Fro ;ein
Jdrundsson
Tenekides
i:iernan
K 1 ech.e r

MM . N6r€aard

Fa:: ce t t

Sperduti

Eusuttil

b:ellber€

Davcr

Custers

Polak

Frowein

J3rundsson

Tenel;i 2 es

Trechsel

I:iernan

Klecker
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